ALL Grounds questions transcribed from written submissions.

1. Who is the incumbent contractor for the GM and Pest Control?

Answer:  This work is currently accomplished under a subcontract to the Joint Base Operating Support Contract (JBOSC) contractor, Space Gateway Support, Inc. (SGS).
2. What is the current annual contract value (last) 12 month option period for both?

    Answer:  The JBOSC is a different contract type, and all bids should be based on the Statement of Work provided with this RFP.   
3. Bid tabulation from previous contract?

   Answer:  Release of this information is prohibited.
4. on/off (sic) site disposal area for shrubs, brush and biodegradable debris?

   Answer: Shrubs, brush and biodegradeable debris can be disposed of in the green waste disposal area at KSC Landfill.
5. working (sic) on day to day deadline or set time deadly (sic) per phase per job?

    Answer:  Question is unclear to the government.  Please see RFP and accompanying SOW for performance and other requirements. 
6. Can we have the name of the current contractor handling the work?

 Answer:  See Government’s answer to question 1, above.
7. on (sic) the site tour several retention ponds had been sprayed, are any of these included in this contract?

Answer:  Yes, all of the ponds in the maintained areas of KSC require as-needed herbicide for cattails. 
8. will (sic)you supply a map with the designated spray areas?

   Answer:  There are no maps currently available specifically for designated spraying areas. See the Exh 1 Area Maps along with Exh 6 Pest Management Schedule, and  newly added spreadsheets to address spraying, specifically the Mosquito tab listing all of the facilities that are sprayed on KSC.  The frequency is based on 3 times per week and as requested.   
9. do (sic) you have an estimate of the amount of sidewalk curbs etc that has (sic) to be sprayed?

    Answer:  There are approx 200,000 linear feet of sidewalk, driveways, curbs, and  shrubbery beds that will need to be sprayed, in addition to areas around trees.
10. are (sic) there any herbicide restrictions other than label restrictions?

      Answer: No.
11. do (sic) you have an estimation of the amount of pest control that must be performed?

      Answer:  See Exhibit 12, Overview, Mow and Stormwater, which has been added to the RFP exhibits.
12. Is it possible to learn how many people are currently working under the contract and how many hold pest control licenses?

    Answer:  This information is proprietary to the contractor and not releaseable.
13. is (sic) there any available record of the quantities of pesticides used annually?

      Answer:  No record currently available, but a request is issued to Environmental for any possible records available from the required monthly reports.
14. is (sic)there any support from the mosquito control district (sic)?

     Answer:  Brevard County Mosquito Control sprays impoundment areas around the launch pads as well as the LC-39 area (north end around VAB and associated work areas).
15. clearance (sic)requirements and access?

      Answer:  Yes, see RFP Attachment 1, para 1.5,  Attachment 5 “Personal Identity Verification” and KSC clause 52.204-96 Security Controls for KSC and CCAFS, at part 3.21 of the RFP.
16. allowed (sic) to come back in or look and measure?

      Answer:  The site visit was the only site visit that will be held.
17. fuel (sic) we provide containers? NASA (sic) provides the fuel?

     Answer:  See Attachment 1, Statement of Work, para 2.1. ISC will provide diesel and gasoline for mowing equipment, including weedeaters and other 2 cycle mixture equipment.  All other fuel required is the responsiblility of the contractor.
18. what (sic) in a nutshell is the collective bargaining agreement?

      Answer:  The incumbent’s workforce is unionized with a collective bargaining agreement. See Attachment 03 which is a part of the RFP.
19. what (sic) is the total acreage for the total project?

     Answer:  KSC has approximately 2500 acres that will be maintained under this contract.  See Exhibit 12 for more specific information.
20. want (sic) only one contractor?

      Answer:  We are awarding one contract, but there can be subcontractors.
21. total (sic) bid budget?
     Answer:  The Government Estimate will not be released as part of this RFP.  
22. storm (sic) water systems? How many and acreage totals?

      Answer:  See Overview, Mow and Stormwater, Exhibit 12, uploaded as part of the RFP exhibits.
23. bale mowing- how often (sic)?

      Answer:  See Attachment 1, Section 2.1, “Hay Baling Operations”.
24. irrigation how many zones (sic)?

     Answer:  Most buildings operate on 2 primary zones, with anywhere from 2-6 secondary zones depending on the building.
25. environmental permits-is that inside areas (sic)?

      Answer:  KSC is under the jurisdiction of The St Johns River Water Management District (SJRWMD), requiring permits as stipulated by SJRWMD. 
26. tree and shrub counts (sic)?

     Answer:  Trees approximate 1000 to be trimmed , or within the built-up areas of KSC, shrubs approximate 3000 to be trimmed, or within the built-up areas of KSC.
27. acreage for fertilization and pest control (sic)?

      Answer:  For fertilization, there are approximately 750 acres. For Pest Control, there are approximatly 250 acres,  plus the facilities.
28. any small business required? Minority or women owned (sic)?

      Answer:  See RFP, page 1, block 10.
29. equipment that is furnished, blades sharpened by NASA or contractor (sic)?

      Answer:  Blades have historically been replaced due to the amount of  time required for sharpening. The Contractor may sharpen at discretion, or replace the blades.
30. chemicals are all provided by the contractor? Marking dyes etc, foamer for tracking (sic)? 
      Answer:  Yes
31. who (sic) is currently doing this contract?

      Answer:  See the Government’s  answer to question 1.
32. historically (sic) how many people used to perform these tasks?

     Answer:  This is information proprietary to the contractor and not releasable.
33. Ref. DRFP Table 2.5-1, Items 0006, 1006, 2006, 3006, 4006.   

Requirement states “Maintain/Trim Trees over 6" in height at KSC…”  

Should the height be diameter, or the 6" be 6'?
      Answer:  This has been corrected to read 6 feet.
34. Ref. DRFP 3.5. Is a list of hazardous materials and applicable identification numbers required to be submitted with the proposal, in the Model Contract, or is this a requirement for the “apparently successful offeror” prior to award?
     Answer:  See section 3.5 of the SOW.  Offeror must list any hazardous material to be provided. MSDS sheets will need to be submitted  as part of phase-in and prior to any application..
35. Ref. DRFP Section 3.6, which requires the GLMPC contractor to replace government property that becomes unusable at contractor expense.  Is this cost charged to the contract?  Will the replacement item be titled to the government?  Please clarify how this requirement relates to those in sections 6.1.7 (g) and 6.1.7 (h) which require the contractor to obtain CO written approval prior to acquiring new or replacement property that it intends to charge to the cost of materials. What does it mean for costs to be “charged to the contract”?  Is the final price of the contract increased by the amount of these costs?
  Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 70.
36. Ref. DRFP 3.6 and SOW 4.1.  The SOW states that Government Furnished Property “will be maintained by the ISC contractor.”  The DRFP states “If any or all of the Government property is lost, damaged or destroyed or becomes no longer usable, the Contractor shall be responsible for replacement of the property at Contractor expense.”  

What is considered “damaged” that would not fall under ISC maintenance and instead come at Contractor expense?  Does this include loss or damage beyond the control of the contractor?  What is the formula to determine when a piece of equipment is no longer maintainable and deemed no longer usable?  What is the turnaround time to be expected for routine maintenance for the GFE listed in Exhibit 8?
   Answer:  a determination of what is considered “damaged” would be evaluated on a case by case basis by the ISC, the GLMPC contractor, the Contracting Officer and the Contracting Officer’s Technical Representative. A piece of equipment would be deemed no longer maintainable when it is no longer cost effective to repair. Routine maintenance turnaround is 3-5 days, if parts must be ordered, additional time is required. 
37. Ref. DRFP 3.17(c).1. Do the available Government phones include cell phones and pagers?
      Answer:  No.
38. Ref. DRFP 3.20. As this is a firm fixed price contract, does this clause, NFS 1852.246-72 Material Inspection and Receiving Report, apply?
      Answer:  Yes
39. Ref. DRFP 6.1.5, 6.3.1.B.  Section 6.1.5 states “The apparent low bidder, upon request by the Contracting Officer, shall submit a detailed safety and occupational health plan.”  Section 6.3.1.B states “The offeror shall submit a detailed safety and occupational health plan as part of the proposal, in accordance with NFS 1852.223-73 SAFETY AND HEALTH PLAN (NOV 2004).”  Please advise as to when the Safety and Health plan is to be submitted.
      Answer:  See RFP, paragraph 6.6.2. The Safety and Health Plan is requested by the Contracting Officer to be submitted with the proposal. 
40. Ref. DRFP Section 6.2.2 and 6.3.1 - What does the checklist consist of?
      Answer:  The checklist is a single page, downloadable document which will be availalbe when the final RFP is issued.
41. Ref. DRFP 6.2.3.  Will a transmittal letter consisting of items being submitted in the proposal count toward the page count?
      Answer:  Please refer to RFP para 6.2.2(c ) and para 6.2.3.
42. Ref. DRFP 6.3.1.B. Are Personal Identification Verification forms/data for incumbent personnel available to the selected offeror?
     Answer:  No.  Release of such information could violate the Privacy Act, and other applicable laws and regulations.
43. Ref. DRFP 6.3.2.1.  The last sentence states: “Offerors shall provide the same level of pricing information and spreadsheets for all proposed subcontractors, if any”.  Does the Government require the offeror to submit an entire separate set of Attachment 6 spreadsheets for its subcontractor?  If so, will the offeror (prime) only be required to submit Table 2.5-1 in the prime’s cost model?  And also if so, can the subcontractor submit its cost model separately to the Government, providing only loaded numbers for the prime’s cost model?
     Answer:  Each subcontractor is required to submit an entire set of Attachment 6 spreadsheets, separate from the prime. Each subcontractor will include a copy of the Contract Line Item section 2.5, table 2.5-1 pricing only the items for which they are subcontracting. The Prime’s proposal should include Contract Line Item Section 2.5, table 2.5-1 that represents the total price proposal (prime + sub), and which clearly shows the complete pricing information on Attachment 6.
44. The DRFP identifies requirements in Attachment 1, Statement of Work, but several other places in DRFP including item B on each DR in Attachment 2, Data Requirements List and Data Requirements refer to Attachment J-1, Performance Work Statement.  Please clarify.
     Answer:  Attachment J-1, Performance Work Statement  should read “Attachment 1 Statement of Work.” The DRL references have been corrected.
45. Ref. SOW 1.2 and 4.5.  Maximo servers, system administration, and tailored work screens and reporting will be provided.  Is the GLMPC contractor expected to procure individual seats/site licenses for its Maximo use?
     Answer:  The Maximo system is provided at Government expense.  The contractor will need to request  the number of seats (PCs) required.
46. Ref. SOW 2.1.2.  Will the ISC contractor provide support for tree trimming that requires high ranger lift equipment at no cost to the GLMPC Contractor?
     Answer:  Yes
47. Ref. SOW 2.2.3.  Will Government furnished equipment under the ISC contract be available to perform removal of dead diseased and storm damaged trees such as a front end loader or trailers at no cost to the GLMPC Contractor?
       Answer:  Yes
48. Ref. SOW 2.2.5.  Will the ISC contractor provide heavy equipment transportation support in transporting the Gyro Trac to different job sites and to the maintenance facility when repair or PMI work is required at no cost to the GLMP Contractor?
      Answer:  Yes
49. Ref. Attachment 6, Data Input Tab. The instructions from cell N2 state, ‘In Column K, enter the Labor Group Number to describe the labor position (See table below)’.  Should this instead be Column N?
      Answer:  This has been corrected, and reflected in the revised Attachment 6.
50. Ref. Attachment 6, Instructions Tab.  Number 7 states” These are the percentages that will be used to develop the fully burdened billable labor rate under worksheet tab:  Burdened Labor.” There is no Burdened Labor tab in the model.  Please advise.
      Answer:  This has been corrected, and reflected in the revised Attachment 6.
51. Ref. Attachment 6.  There does not appear to be a way for the offeror to include its subcontractor’s fully loaded costs in the cost model, which is needed in order to complete Table 2.5-1. Please advise.
     Answer:  If a subcontractor is used, the subcontractor can submit the Contract Line Item Section 2.5, table 2.5-1 with the required subcontractor’s Attachment 6, to which the prime contractor can apply burdens and methods/formulas for the calculations used to provide the Prime’s Contract Line Item Section 2.5 table 2.5-1 and Attachment 6.  
52. Ref. Exhibit 11. Please explain how the WBS and DR references in Exhibit 11 relate to the SOW.
     Answer:  The Government has Reviewed Exhibit 11, Compliance Docs. No noted WBS nor DR references were identified. 
53. Will the Government provide acreage for the areas that have been identified to be mowed?
       Answer:  See the Government’s  answer to question 19, above.
54. Review of the solicitation web site (sic) we could not find several maps. These are C3, Dl, F3, P7, and Q7. Can these maps be uploaded or will maps be provided at the site visit?
       Answer:  The noted maps are bodies of water within KSC and not included for that reason .
55. No estimated quantities can be found in the solicitation or Work Statement. For

example CLINS 0001,0002, and 0003 no acreage amount is provided. Is there a another

reference we are to use that identifies the amount of acres to be maintained? Without

knowing how large an area is to be maintained it is impossible to provide a good price for

the work.
     Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 19, and review Exh 12 for acreage._____
56. CLIN 0004 (sic) can a better description of "other services" be provided. Where are the services to be performed? Is specialized equipment needed? It is kind of a guessing

game as to the required work required (sic). Please clarify.
     Answer:  CLIN 0004 is pricing for labor hours for other services, see Attachment 1 Statement of Work, the paragraphs at  2.2 for the definition of these.
57. CLIN 0009 asks for cost to install one acre of sod. Does the government have a

particular type of sod it requires (sic). What type of grass is required?
       Answer:  Sod/seed, generally, on KSC is Pensacola Bahia.  Sod at the Headquarters Building  (Bldg M6-399) is St Augustine.  Sod type should not be changed without specific direction from the CO or COTR.
58. The maps are useful for general orientation. However, the maps do not identify the

areas to be maintained (improved ground, semi-improved, un-improved etc). The

solicitation work statement says improved grounds require a higher level of service.

Does the government require any specialized equipment to maintain improved grounds?

Can the government better define what it means by "higher level of service?"
    Answer:  See Exh 1, 2 and 3, wherein the mowing areas and frequencies are defined. “Improved grounds” are the areas around important facilities/buildings and listed with a more frequent mowing. “Semi-improved ‘A’” areas are designated facilities, roads, and Parkway/Runway areas where the general public travels on tours, to include the Shuttle Landing Facility. “Semi-improved ‘B’” areas are the remainder of the facilities/roadways. “Unimproved” areas are the back slopes and berms around dredge pits and back roads where maintenance crews and equipment or other support staff need access.

59. Will the contractor be allowed to have bulk fuel storage on site?
       Answer:  See Government’s answer to question 17. No noted need for bulk fuel, but request an area if one is justifiably necessary.
60. We could not find mowing height requirements for the various types of ground. Does

the government have a specified mowing height or height standard? If yes where do we find it.
      Answer:  The work is stipulated in frequency rather than height. See Statement of Work, and Exhibit 3.
61. Roadway and Medians. NASA refers to exhibit 3a for information regarding

maintenance of these areas. However, we can find no acreage or distant amounts

provided. Without knowing the size of these areas it is difficult to properly determine

manpower and equipment requirements.
     Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 19 and see Exhibit 12 Overview, Mow and Stormwater
62. Storm Water System. NASA refers the contractor to Exhibit 7 regarding

environmental permits for this service. Is the contractor required to obtain the necessary

environmental permits to perform work within these areas or does government obtain

them?
      Answer:  KSC applies for the permits required, and the contractor will maintain all areas in a manner consistent with the permit requirements
63. Mowing by areas. The government provides Exhibit 3b for a list of areas to be

maintained. However, no acreage for these areas is provided. Is there another reference

providing acreage the contractor is supposed to use or will the government provide a list

of areas with the acreage associated with it?
      Answer See Government’s answer to question 61.
64. Work Statement, paragraphs 1.2.2, 2.1.2, 2.1.3, 2.6.4, 2.6.5 cannot be adequately cost

evaluated without proper quantities in terms of acreage, square feet. Is there a reference

the contractor is supposed to use which identifies these areas in terms of acreage?
       Answer:  See Government’s answer to question 61.
65. Vegetation Control. Not enough information is provided to properly evaluate the

cost associated with performing Vegetation Control. Can we be provided a list of the

areas, their size etc where vegetation control will be performed?
     Answer:  See government’s answer to question 61 
66. What is ISC contractor?
      Answer:  ISC is an acronym for Institutional Support Contract.  See also Attachment 1, Statement of Work, para 1.2.
67. Work Statement, paragraph 2.2.3, the provided description calls for tree and stump

removal. However in CLIN 0008 it describes removing trees in size 6" to 24." Please

clarify what size trees are included in the contract for removal.
       Answer:  This has been corrected to read 6 (six) feet or greater.
68. Work Statement, paragraph 2.2.4, ground restoration. Cost varies greatly between

installation of seed, sprig or sod. Can the government provide an estimate of how much

of each type the government may need annually?
      Answer:  The option of seed would be approximately 400-500 lbs annually and the option of sod would be approximately  2000-3000 sf annually, based on normal use.
69. Work Statement paragraph 2.2.5, land clearing. The description of work for land

clearing is not sufficient. Is the requirement to remove trees, brush, grass, stumps, and

then grade (sic). What type of areas are these, dry or swamp (sic)? We also did not see a CLIN to price this service. Please clarify and identify which CLIN the contractor is to provide the price for this work.
      Answer:  See CLIN 0004 and the follow on year CLINs and the related Exhibits provided for work areas within KSC. Exact areas are not known nor currently anticipated.
70. Government provided equipment. If a piece of equipment becomes inoperable we

understand the contractor is responsible for replacement. Please confirm the ownership

of that equipment will remain with the contractor.. .yes?
      Answer:  If the contractor replaces equipment using its own funds, title remains with the contractor. If the contractor purchases equipment at the Government’s request and is reimbursed for that cost, then title vests in the Government.
71. Government provided equipment. Will the contractor be responsible for repairs?

Who will make the determination when a piece of equipment is beyond its useful

life. . .the contractor or the government?
      Answer:  GFE is maintained by the ISC and is at Government expense. Contractor provided equipment, including the contractor’s replacement equipment, is maintained at Contractor expense. The Contractor’s equipment can be maintained as operational with parts replacement and oil changes on site at a designated area.  All major maintenance shall be accomplished off-center.  See, also, the Government’s answer to question 36.
72. Government provided equipment. Is there a set maintenance schedule for

government provided equipment or are maintenance schedules left to the contractor to

maintain.
      Answer:  Equipment is maintained on a preventative maintenance schedule based on the manufacturer’s suggested schedule for that type of equipment 
73. Government furnished storage areas. Is the contractor allowed to perform regular

routine, and heavy maintenance on contractor owned and government provided

equipment at the government provided locations?
       Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 71.
74. Government furnished storage areas. Are maintenance records available for review

by the contractor prior to bid submittal date? Are there any reliability records available,

such as Mean Time between Maintenance or annual estimated cost of repairs.
     Answer:  No usable records are available. Although the information is input in a specific system, a database record extraction is not currently available for this function.
75. Are we to use the Wage determination pages for salaries and all wages under this RFP ? 
Answer:  Yes 
76. is (sic) there a set schedule for Fertilization, weed control, pest control?

     Answer:  Fertilization and weed control is as needed and under correct conditions. Cafeterias would be sprayed monthly, see Pest Scope Management Schedule, Exhibit 6a, 6b and 6c, part of the RFP documents..
77. the (sic) equipment list provided, and what was seen in the walk through seem to vary, what is the age of this equipment, and when is KSC going to replace the older equipment?

      Answer:  KSC will not replace any of the existing equipment.  It is provided to the contractor for use and maintained at Government expense, with any replacement to be the contractor’s responsibility.
78. During the drive through there were several bee hives, are there limits for pesticide uses, and herbicide uses (sic)?

      Answer:  Spraying around hives in groves is not the responsibility of the GLMPC contractor.. 
79. What is the total acreage to be serviced? 

       Answer:  See question 61, and Exhibit 12, Overview Mow and Stormwater.

. What is the total budget for this RFP?

       Answer:  See the Government’s answer to Question 21.
81. Who is the current provider?

       Answer:  See Government’s answer to question 1.
82.  If a contractor brings out there [sic] own equipment, will a space be provided for storage?

      Answer:  An equipment yard is available for storage of contractor owned equipment at the risk of the contractor . Historically, equipment is/can be left in place at work areas.
83. Are there better maps of KSC?

      Answer:  Maps supplied are the best that are currently available and releaseable..
84. Will there be another chance to visit the property?  I have worked for a sub-contractor there at KCS a few years back, if that helps.

       Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 16.
85. Will the contractor be required to have MOT certification for this contract? 
       Answer:  No.
86.  Will the contractor be required to hold a current Certified Pest Control Operators license in house or will contractors be allowed to sub-contract this portion of the specs? 
        Answer:  See Statement of Work, para 3.2, and the Government’s answer to question 20.
87.  Will the contractor be required to show proof of Certifications upon submittal of bid response? 
        Answer:  See RFP paras 6.3- Demonstrating Technical Capability.
88. Is there a bid bond associated with this contract? 
      Answer:  No
89. Where will the awarded contractor be allowed to store equipment on site? 
       Answer:  See Government’s answer to question 82.
90. Will there be a location provided to the contractor for storage, dumpsters, etc? 
       Answer:  Dumpsters are available at all facilities. Chemical storage facilities are also available.  See, also, the Government’s answer to question 82. 
91. What is the anticipated budget for the contract? 
      Answer:  See the Government’s answer to Question 21.
92. IS the current scope of services being performed to KSC’s standards? 
      Answer:  Yes
93. Who is the current contractor? 
       Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 1.
94. What is the anticipated cycle completion schedule for the scope of services?
       Answer:  See RFP, para 2.3, Period of Performance.
95. As far as clearance is concerned, will the contractor be required to provide KSC a list of personnel for clearance? 
       Answer:  See Attachment 5 to the RFP: “Personal Identity Verification”, and KSC clause 52.204-96 Security Controls for KSC and CCAFS, part 3.21 of RFP. 
96. Is there any equipment that KSC will require the contractor to use for completion of the scope? 
      Answer:  It is the contractor’s responsibility to determine the necessary equipment for performance. A list of GFE is provided with this RFP for your reference and use as deemed appropriate.
97. What equipment (if any) will be provided by KSC for completion of the scope? 
       Answer:  See Exhibit 8 to the RFP: “Government Furnished Equipment”.
98. Is there a refueling site on premises and is there a standard charge for contractors fuel consumption? 
       Answer:  See Attachment 1, para 2.1, Mowing, and the answer to question 17.
99. Please provide or clarify KNPR8500.1 KSC ENVIROMENTAL REQUIREMENTS. 
      Answer:  This document will be uploaded as an informational document for your use.
100. Please provide the quantity of mulch anticipated for this contract in cubic yards at standard 3” depth. 
        Answer:  There are no records responsive to this question.
100. Please provide information on the irrigation schedule and restrictions. 
        Answer:  Irrigation areas shall operate twice weekly unless turf health dictates a more frequent schedule. Irrigation hours shall be outside of  KSC work hours (i.e., 6 p.m.- 6 a. m.).
101. Is the irrigation system reclaim (sic)? 
        Answer:  No
102. Is there a required fertilizer blend that KSC desires or is this up to the contractor? 
        Answer:  See Statement of work, para 2.1.4, and the label must be submitted to COTR for review prior to approval. 
103. How many pounds of fertilizer is required per 1000 sqft? Or is this based on manufacture specs? 
        Answer:  The manufacturers instructions and recommendations on the approved fertilizer is acceptable.
104. Can pest management be subcontracted? 
        Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 20.
105. Do you have a total number acres associated with this contract? 
        Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 19.
106. Will local preference be given with this contract? (i.e Brevard, Orange, Seminole, Osceola county businesses) 
         Answer:  See RFP, page 1, block 10.
107. Will there be preference to Veteran owned businesses? 
         Answer:  See RFP, page 1, block 10.
108. There is both a CBA and a DOD Wage Determination with the Draft Solicitation.

For clarification purposes, are all contract employee classifications to be covered under the CBA or the Wage Determination?

       Answer:  See answers to questions 18 and 75.  The contractor is required to follow all applicable laws, rules, and regulations applicable to this procurement with regard to collective bargaining agreements and wage determinations.
109. Does the government have the current operating condition for the GFE? 
        Answer:  All GFE is currently in operating condition.
110. Since the contractor will be required to supplement and subsequently replace the GFE when it is beyond economical repair (sic).  Who will determine it is beyond economical repair?  
        Answer:  See the Government’s answer to question 36
111. It was apparent that a significant amount of equipment be used for mowing was not listed as GFE, it is assumed the new contractor will also need to provide, fuel and maintenance. 
        Answer:  See Attachment 1, Statement of Work, para 2.1, 4.1, and 4.2. and the Government’s answer to question 17.
112. Will NASA KSC consider adding a contract line item to adjust the contract value up or down similar to the way a Wage Adjustment is handled?

         Answer:  No.
113. What herbicides are currently approved for usage on KSC?

         Answer:  See DOD Pesticides List, Exhibit 13. 
114. Has NASA KSC considered adding an Award Fee Component to the contract?

         Answer:  No.
115. Clin 0003 the PWS does not have any description of Un-improved grounds any where and there is not a legend on the maps as to where this area or areas are. 

NEED:

A. properly identified areas on the Maps

B. Acreages of these required services 

C. Mowing frequencies of all services

-See Technical Exhibit 12, uploaded as part of the RFP package.

116. I was re- reviewing the Exhibits this afternoon in preparation of setting up our pricing schedule we have found in Exhibit 3b Recurring mowing schedule there are five schedules that contains no information regarding the mowing schedule. It does state requirements are contained in the PWS, my question to you is where would this information be found if not here in this exhibit format. 

Answer:  See the Statement of Work Section entitled  “Mowing by Area”, which contains each specific location ( e.g., KSC South Boundary) specified for annual mowing occurrences. 
117. Does the government anticipate any overtime associated with launch or other scheduled events? If yes, what are the annual estimates for overtimes hours anticipated?
Answer:  No. See the Statement of Work, paragraph  2.2, for priority of recurring versus non-recurring work.
118. In the Draft SOW, 2.1.1 Landscaping: Apply natural colored, shredded cypress mulch to plant beds annually. At a depth that will help control the growth of weeds in the plant bed area, Is the mulch provided by the government or by the contractor? If provided by the contractor is this expense reimbursable to the contractor by the government?  

Answer:  Mulch is provided by contractor as part of the monthly CLIN price for landscaping.
119  Are their any unique pieces of equipment required that are provided by the contractor? (Examples: hay baling, tub or rotary grinders, bucket trucks, lifts, etc.) If yes, will the government provide a listing of these types of equipment and their anticipated annual usage? 

Answer:  For Optional Hay Baling, the contractor provides the necessary equipment.  No other unique equipment will be required.
120. In the Draft SOW, 4.2 Contractor Property:  The Contractor shall provide all necessary equipment, other than that which is listed in Exhibit 8, Equipment List.   The Contractor shall maintain all Contractor-provided  

            property at an off-site location and/or mobile equipment in-situ maintenance service, in-situ being repairs made where the equipment encountered a needed maintenance.

Please clarify maintain.  Do you mean handle repair and maintenance at an offsite location? Or are you referring to storing all contractor furnished equipment at an offsite location and utilizing onsite only when required? If you mean storing of contractor furnished equipment at an offsite location what are the restrictions for leaving CFE onsite? 

Answer:  Major maintenance to be performed off-site would be, for example, a motor or transmission repair. On site maintenance would be considered things like tire replacement, window/battery/wiper blade replacement, etc. With regard to questions related to storage of the equipment, see the answer to  82, above. 
